
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUSSEX COUNTY SOLID WASTE ADVISORY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

OCTOBER 8, 2013 
 

 The meeting was opened at 7:34 p.m. by Chairman Landrith. The meeting was 
held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A. 10:4-1 of 1975, as 
amended, and notice has been forwarded to the newspapers and posted on the 
bulletin board maintained at the Sussex County Administrative Center for public 
announcement. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
 MEMBERS PRESENT: James Landrith, Andover Borough, Chairman 
    William Koellhoffer, Byram Township 
    Gary Larson, Frankford Township 
    Jason Doyle, Franklin Borough 
    Dennis Haff, Fredon Township 
    Allen Esenlohr, Green Township 
    Karen Hansen, Hampton Township 
    Robert Schultz, Hardyston Township   
    Howard Baker, Hopatcong Borough 
    Stephanie Pizzulo, Lafayette Township 
    Ken Jaekel, Town of Newton 
    Jo-Ann Williamson, Sandyston Township 
    Eric Powell, Sparta Township 
    Annette Stendor, Sussex Borough 
    Christopher Fitzpatrick, At-Large 
 
 EXCUSED MEMBERS: Don Drake, Stanhope Borough 

Eleanor Mensonides, At-Large, Vice Chair 
Donald Ploetner, At-Large 

     
 STAFF MEMBERS:  Alice Brees, Program Manager 
    Antoinette Wasiewicz, Recording Secretary 
    Adam Boltz, Health Department 
    Reenee Casapulla, Recycling Coordinator 
    Tom Varro, SCMUA 
 
 ALSO PRESENT:  Jay and Jill Fischer, Ag. Choice, LLC 



MINUTES       Page 
10/8/13 
 
 

 

2

MINUTES CORRECTION/APPROVAL: 
 
It was noted that Adam Boltz’ name was incorrectly spelled throughout the Minutes. A 
motion was made by Christopher Fitzpatrick to approve the Minutes of September 10, 
2013 with the above noted corrections. The motion was seconded by Karen Hansen. 
All were in favor, with abstentions from Gary Larsen, Jason Doyle, Robert Schultz and 
Howard Baker. Motion carried. 
 
CHAIRMAN’S REMARKS: 
 
Chairman Landrith said the Presentation on the DEP Seminar for County Debris 
Management Plan was removed from the original Agenda because DEP postponed the 
seminar. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
A. PRESENTATION: AG. CHOICE, NEW SITE LOCATION: 
 
Jay Fischer, Ag. Choice said he is looking to have his application amended for 
inclusion in the County Solid Waste Plan. He is moving his operation to a new location 
about a mile or two away from his current site. The new location in Andover Township 
will start off with a five-year lease for a 7- acre field and he has hopes of purchasing 
the property. Mr. Fischer was advised to amend his County application before going to 
DEP for permit updates.  
 
The property is off County Route 603 in Andover Twp. and Mr. Fischer displayed a 
map of the site. The access road is well suited for trucks and is close to State Route 
206. The neighboring properties are either Green Acres applications or farms in 
Farmland Preservation. Ag. Choice would lease 7 acres of a 300- acre farm. The 
nearest structure is three times further away than on his current site. Mr. Fischer said 
he has been operating Ag. Choice for about six years without DEP or County Health 
violations. He added that he is looking to double his capacity. Currently, DEP permits 
him for 20,000 cubic yards per year of incoming products, and he plans to increase it 
to 50,000 cubic yards per year. 
 
When asked how many people Ag. Choice employs. Mr. Fischer said currently he has 
seven full-time employees. He had nine employees at one time with four to five part-
time employees over the summer. There are also some structures on the site, 
including a 10,000 sq. ft. warehouse. He plans to install a machine to separate the 
packaging from the food and liquid products. When this happens he will immediately 
need to add two or three more employees. He said his employees are County residents 
and they are averaging $40,000-$60,000 per year plus benefits. 
 
Mr. Fischer said he is currently permitted for open windrow pre-and post consumer 
food waste composting. He said that he only received one or two loads of post-
consumer waste in the past six years. He does take in product from outside haulers. 
When asked what types of food products he is permitted to take in, Mr. Fischer said, 
“soup to nuts.”  



MINUTES       Page 
10/8/13 
 
 

 

3

Mr. Fischer said he is listed as an RD&D (Research, Development & Demonstration) 
facility. Under current DEP guidelines for a Class C facility, the only way you can do 
food waste composting is indoors on an impervious pad. In the first part of RD&D, he 
proved that it does not need to be indoors and does not need to be on an impervious 
pad if you utilize a covered windrow system as he does. He covers his rows with a 
geotech style mesh in the event of heavy rain and adverse weather conditions which 
could lead to stormwater runoff and leachate issues. A study was done with livestock 
manure compost to prove that composting livestock waste eliminates all stormwater 
runoff issues associated with stockpiling manure on farms and trying to prevent non-
point source pollution. The first stage of RD&D was to prove that by composting this 
material in a covered windrow and converting it from raw manure to stable humus 
compost, you can eliminate a lot of those stormwater issues. The second part was to 
prove that the covers themselves will eliminate stormwater runoff issues associated 
with outdoor windrow composting. The third phase of his RD&D will be for odor issues 
and stormwater runoff. Mr. Fischer said he did research to show that you can utilize 
biofilters to prevent stormwater runoff and odor issues. When asked, Mr. Fischer said 
he will apply for a five-year permit from DEP. 
 
Mr. Fischer said DEP makes unannounced visits to his operation once a month, and 
the County visits once every quarter. He is required to file reports every year about his 
research results. He said he works with Rutgers University and USDA. When asked if 
Mr. Fischer has a full permit, he said he is still listed as an RD&D. He was hoping to 
get the full Class C permit this year, but with Hurricane Sandy, the DEP is still tied up 
with wood waste issues. His next meeting with DEP is October 23.   
 
Mr. Fischer said his customers are primarily higher-end landscapers. He also 
wholesales to smaller garden centers. He delivers most of his compost product 
because he is not set up for retail sales at the farm.  
 
Tom Varro asked Mr. Fischer to provide a copy of the full DEP application to Alice 
Brees so that it can be distributed to SWAC. Mrs. Fischer questioned the need for 
“volumes” of documents because they are only relocating and are already in the 
County Solid Waste Plan. Ms. Brees said they also want to expand the operation. Ms. 
Brees said she will discuss this with Eric Snyder. Tom Varro said it would be helpful 
for SWAC to have a copy of the existing permit so that they will be aware of what they 
are approving.  
 
There was a question about the biofilters. Mr. Fischer said it is a simple process. He 
takes beneficial microbes that are in aerobic compost and utilizes them with the 
compost and ground-up wood for porosity. When it is screened out, he ends up with a 
little bit of compost blended with woodchips. The woodchips are coated with those 
beneficial microbes. The windrows are coated as they are turned. A windrow is 
designed as an arch. Cool air comes in the base of the windrows and convexes up 
through the center where the microbes are generating heat. The air then chimneys out 
the top of the windrows. He said essentially what he is doing is taking a mixture of the 
compost and partially decomposed woodchips and laying it across the top of the 
windrow. As the turner is going through, there is a wheel loaded behind it dumping 
woodchips across the top of it. The potential negative chemical compounds that could 



MINUTES       Page 
10/8/13 
 
 

 

4

create odor are forced to go up through the woodchips. In those woodchips are the 
beneficial microbes. They start to eat the negative microbes and eliminate the odor. 
Stormwater works in a similar way. Construction sites use silt fence or hay bales to 
stop physical particles. He is doing the same thing using a similar mixture of 
woodchips and compost to force all the water that is on the site to run through it. It 
will physically stop any of the silt or other solid particles from running off. If there is a 
heavy rain event, they will scoop out the compost and woodchips and use them as a 
feedstock in the next windrow and put fresh woodchips and compost in its place. They 
can continually change that filter. Mr. Fischer said this is being done in California 
with quite a bit of success.  
 
Tom Varro asked Mr. Fischer about a prior presentation where Mr. Fischer talked 
about acquiring a new machine which would allow him to have higher and wider 
windrows. He asked if this has been done. Mr. Fischer said this has been done and is 
now part of the current operation. Mr. Varro asked if he was correct in assuming that 
the size of the windrows will remain the same at the new location but that there will be 
more of them. Mr. Fischer said that was correct but that he will be able to go a little 
bit longer. Currently the windrows are 150’ long. At the new site he will be able to go 
300’ long with more rows. With the turner he is using now, he has been able to double 
the capacity on the same footprint but still allow the proper decomposition and aerobic 
conditions to occur. He does not see himself upgrading to a bigger turner.  
 
There was some question about composting meats. Mr. Fischer said he is permitted to 
compost meats but he has only taken in a couple of loads from an outside hauler. The 
loads were contaminated and he did not allow the driver to dump it off the truck. 
 
Mr. Fischer was asked about New York City requiring food waste to be composted 
rather than being put into the garbage. Mr. Fischer said that was true however, he 
feels it is premature because there are only three facilities that can handle food waste. 
 
Renee Casapulla asked Mr. Fischer if he had to go before Andover Township. Mr. 
Fischer said he is not required to. The property is zoned industrial and he meets the 
criteria for industrial use. The composting side of the operation is considered on-farm 
composting, which is part of a normal farming operation. As long as he is operating as 
a RD&D facility under DEP, he is not subject to local zoning ordinances. She also 
asked him the route trucks will take to get to his new location. Mr. Fischer said trucks 
will travel on State Route 206, make a left onto County Route 603 (at Simon Peter 
Fishing Tackle). The site is about a mile down on Route 603. 
 
Mr. Fischer was asked to talk about other products that he brings in to his facility. 
Mr. Fischer said proper decomposition requires a carbon and nitrogen ratio of about 
30/1. Food waste and manure is only a small fraction (about 30%) of the material he 
takes in. The majority of it is carbon materials, brown materials like municipal leaves. 
 
Mr. Fischer said he would provide Ms. Brees with the information that was requested. 
He will also forward the final lease when he receives it. Chairman Landrith said after 
these documents are received, Staff can prepare a Resolution for SWAC. Mr. Fischer 
said his permit expires on December 31 and is looking for the signed Resolution by 



MINUTES       Page 
10/8/13 
 
 

 

5

then. Ms. Brees said she will check with DEP to see what will be required and then 
advise Mr. Fischer.  
      
OLD BUSINESS: 

 

A. APPOINTMENT OF SWAGER MEMBERS: 
 
Chairman Landrith said at the last meeting, Eleanor Mensonides suggested that 
SWAGER be reestablished to work on the County Solid Waste Management Plan. 
SWAGER will meet one hour before the regular SWAC meeting. Ms. Mensonides was 
excused from this evening’s meeting, and Chairman Landrith appointed her as the 
temporary Chair of this sub-committee. Mr. Landrith said so far, Donald Ploetner 
volunteered to serve on SWAGER and he asked for additional volunteers. Jason Doyle 
volunteered.  
 
A member asked what the goal of the sub-committee was. Mr. Landrith said the Solid 
Waste Management Plan (SWMP) needs to be updated. Alice Brees said she heard from 
both Ms. Mensonides and Eric Snyder that the existing complete SWMP was created in 
1995 and since then there have been a number of amendments. The amendments 
need to be codified. There was some question as to whether the Plan needs to be just 
codified or codified and amended. Mr. Landrith said he would like to talk to Mr. 
Snyder about the goals for this project aside from codifying the Plan, and asked if 
SWAC would like to table this issue. A motion was made by Christopher Fitzpatrick to 
table the discussion of SWAGER until the goals can be discussed with Eric Snyder. 
The motion was seconded by Howard Baker and carried unanimously. 
 
 
Allen Esenlohr said he spoke with Rob Van Naarden of Delta Thermo Energy. Delta 
Thermo Energy did a presentation before SWAC in July regarding his Waste to Energy 
facility. Mr. Esenlohr feels it is time to start the discussion of the cost to build this 
facility. He said Delta Thermo Energy has the permits to burn the pulverized fuel in 
New Jersey. Mr. Landrith agreed that Delta Thermo Energy was the most viable 
applicant that came before SWAC. Christopher Fitzpatrick suggested that SWAC visit 
the facility in Allentown, PA. Mr. Esenlohr said Delta Thermo Energy received approval 
for a facility in Atlantic City, NJ. Chairman Landrith asked Alice Brees to look into 
this. Mr. Varro suggested asking for an update on what has transpired since his 
presentation in July and the status of different projects. A motion was made by 
Christopher Fitzpatrick to direct Staff to contact Rob Van Naarden to meet with SWAC 
again. The motion was seconded by Allen Esenlohr and carried unanimously.  
 
REPORTS: 
 
A. SCMUA UPDATE: 
 
Tom Varro distributed tonnage data to SWAC with current tonnage in FY 2013 and the 
years back through 2010 from December 1 through September 30 in each of those 
years. For the current year, the total tonnage is 85,074. Compared to last year at this 
time, it was 82,901. This represents an increase of 2.6%. Going back to 2011, there 



MINUTES       Page 
10/8/13 
 
 

 

6

was a -5% change from 2011 to 2012. Overall, in 2013 when comparing to 2011, there 
is a -2.5% change. This is due to ID13 Bulky Waste at the landfill and ID13 C&D 
(construction and demolition debris.) In 2013, ID13 Bulky was at 7,129 tons. This is 
up 19% over the prior year, 2012. ID13 C&D was 9,289 tons. This is up 12% from the 
prior year. ID13 is about 30% of the total inbound materials.  
 
There was data on the revenues from the landfill, Residents’ Convenience Center, 
recycling and miscellaneous charges and surcharges. Total revenue this year through 
September 30 is $9,139,211. This is a 3.6% increase over the prior year. Much of that 
is due to the ID13 waste category.  
 
When asked if this is on target with their budget, Mr. Varro said they projected 
103,000 tons and it looks like they will be at or very close to that figure. With revenue 
being slightly higher because ID13 is a higher paying waste class, it should be good. 
The fiscal year closes November 30. He will report after that time. Mr. Schultz asked 
what is done with surplus revenue. Mr. Varro said there really are no surpluses in the 
budget because they have a large debt. If there is some additional money, it can be put 
towards the Renewal and Replacement Fund because this account is very low. They 
also have a Cell Closure Fund which has a deficit.  
 
B. RECYCLING COORDINATOR: 
 
Renee Casapulla said they had the fourth free E-Waste Collection Day on Saturday, 
October 5, the last one for 2013. There were 950 participants for the event. This 
included 20 towns and schools that came to the facility the day before. They will 
continue to accept all electronics on a daily basis from residents and businesses in the 
County for a fee based on the weight of the material. The material is recycled on an 
on-going basis. Ms. Casapulla said she does not have the exact tonnage yet but 
estimates it to be 35-40 tons. Dates for 2014 E-Waste Collection are being worked on 
and will be posted on the website shortly.  
 
The Municipal Recycling Coordinator’s meeting has been scheduled for Tuesday, 
October 22 at 10:00 a.m. This meeting will review programs that were used during the 
year. Also, DEP releases recycling rates during the fall and then provides the payout 
amounts for the recycling tonnage grants for municipalities. These grants are based on 
the 2011 Recycling Tonnage Reports. Ms. Casapulla said the MUA has invited the 
Health Department to be an active part of the Agenda for this meeting. She asked 
Adam Boltz for an update on this invitation. Mr. Boltz said he is waiting for a “green 
light” and that they are consulting with the State regarding a coordinated effort 
between the Health Department and the local recycling coordinators. 
 
Regarding the 2011 Recycling Tonnage Grants amounts, 15 municipalities did see an 
increase in the funding compared to the 2010 grants that they received. The State has 
not released the funds yet. She should have more detail about the amounts next 
month. The grant amounts and the recycling rates for municipalities will be discussed 
at length at the October 22 meeting.  
 



MINUTES       Page 
10/8/13 
 
 

 

7

A Household Hazardous Waste Disposal Day is scheduled for Saturday, November 2. 
She asked SWAC to bring this information back to their municipalities and local 
businesses and residents.  
 
Ms. Casapulla provided SWAC with a card with new safety information that the 
SCMUA is providing to all residents and business in the County regarding the 
collection of single-use small propane cylinders and engines that hold gasoline and 
other fluids. The propane cylinders must be segregated from the waste stream and 
gasoline and other fuels must be removed from the engine prior to being brought in to 
the landfill. She said they are not permitted to store old gasoline at their facility.  
 
C. STATE LIAISON: 
 
The State Liaison did not attend this evening’s meeting, nor did he provide a report. 
 
DIRECTOR’S REPORTS: 
 
A. ERIC SNYDER: 
 
Eric Snyder was on vacation at the time of this meeting. 
 
B. HEALTH DEPARTMENT: 
 
Adam Boltz reported that he sent a Notice of Violation to a restaurant in Sandyston 
and he is scheduled to visit them on Thursday. He also said there is a large apartment 
complex in Newton that closed the door on him. He will speak to the Newton Recycling 
Coordinator about this. 
 
To date, 178 solid waste containers were inspected and 141 waste flow closures. There 
were 25 garbage truck routes inspected, three are open. There were 21 NOVs (Notice of 
Violation) to date; one is to be written for recent container violations for unmarked 
purveyor and expired decal not removed. Six NOVs were recycling related: mixing 
loads, failure to separate recyclables from solid waste. 
 
There were 12 penalty assessments to date, three more to be signed this week. Two 
were for waste flow and one was for accepting waste (tree trunks/parts) to be used for 
landfill material. 
 
There were 17 NJDEP Referred Investigations to date. There was a new one for alleged 
dumping on top of a mountain in Wantage. No violations were documented.  
 
There were 17 CEHA SW Complaints/Referrals to date. Two were for asphalt millings 
being used on Lackawanna Drive in Byram. They do expect full compliance. One is a 
resident and one is a commercial site. 
 
Facilities Inspections Completed were for the SCMUA Landfill, six Class A Convenience 
Centers, one Class B, three Exempt Class B and two Exempt Class C. RER was 



MINUTES       Page 
10/8/13 
 
 

 

8

inspected after the June meeting. Fall inspections will include all Convenience Centers 
and a Class A facility in Andover Township. 
 
JoAnn Williamson asked Mr. Boltz if he would e-mail her more information about the 
issue in Sandyston Township, and Mr. Boltz agreed to do that.  
 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 
A. MUNICIPAL RESOLUTIONS OPPOSING SENATE BILL 2528 FOR PROPOSED 
 EXEMPTION FROM SOURCE SEPARATION REQUIREMENTS: SPARTA AND 
 FREDON: 
B. SOLID WASTE FACILITY MONTHLY DISPOSAL REPORT, GRINNELL 
 RECYCLING, 9/6/13: 
C. SEMINAR FOR BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES FOR COUNTY AND 
 MUNICIPAL RECYLCING CENTERS, SCMUA, 9/6/13: 
D. CERTIFICATION OF RECEIPT OF THE AMENDMENT TO THE S.C. SOLID 
 WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR LANDFILL EXPANSION, NJDEP, 9/26/13: 
E. MONTHLY SOLID WASTE REPORT, COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR, 9/11/13: 
F. MONTHLY SOLID WASTE REVENUE AND APPROPRIATION REPORT (DEC. 1, 
 2012 THRU AUG. 31, 2013): 
 
Alice Brees summarized the Correspondence listed above. Renee Casapulla pointed 
out that for Correspondence-C, the date of the Seminar is October 10. (For 
clarification, Correspondence Items are listed by Subject, the Source and the date that 
the document was received by the Planning Division.) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
None 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
All business having been completed, a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by 
Jason Doyle. The motion was seconded by Gary Larson and carried unanimously. The 
meeting adjourned at 8:50 p.m. 
 


